
 

 
 

Law & Democracy 
Democratic Services 

 

 

 

T O  C O U N C I L L O R : 
 

G A Boulter 
C S Gore 
S Z Haq 

P Joshi 
J Kaufman 

K J Loydall (Chair) 

I K Ridley 

 
I summon you to attend the following meeting for the transaction of the business in the agenda below. 
 

Meeting: Audit Committee 

Date & Time: Wednesday, 22 January 2025, 7.00 pm 

Venue: Civic Suite 2, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ 

Contact: Democratic Services 

t:  (0116) 257 2775 

e:  democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

 
 Yours faithfully 

 

 
Meeting ID:  2734 

Council Offices 
Oadby 
14 January 2025 

 
 

Anne E Court 
Chief Executive 

 

I T E M  N O .  A G E N D A  P A G E  N O ’ S  

 

 Meeting Live Broadcast | Information and Link  

 This meeting will be broadcast live. 
 
Press & Public Access:  
 
A direct link to the live broadcast of the meeting's proceedings on the Council's 
Civico platform is below.  
 

https://civico.net/oadby-wigston/19837-Audit-Committee  

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the 
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

2.   Appointment of Substitutes  

~ Page 1 ~

https://civico.net/oadby-wigston/19837-Audit-Committee


 

Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 22 January 2025, 7.00 pm 

 Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council 

Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ 
 

 To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 26 of Part 4 of the 
Constitution and the Substitution Procedure Rules. 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having 
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make 
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'. 

 

4.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting 4 - 6 

 To read, confirm and approve the minutes of the previous meeting in 
accordance with Rule 19 of Part 4 of the Constitution. 

 

5.   Action List Arising from the Previous Meeting  

 There was no Action List arising from the previous meeting.  

6.   Petitions and Deputations  

 To receive any Petitions and, or, Deputations in accordance with Rule(s) 11 and 
12 of Part 4 of the Constitution and the Petitions Procedure Rules respectively. 

 

7.   Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025) 7 - 27 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer  

8.   Appointment of Internal Auditors 28 - 29 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer  

9.   External Audit Progress Report (January 2025) 30 - 78 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer  

10.   Strategic Risk Register Update (Q2 2024/25) 79 - 86 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer  

 
Access all available public meeting information, documents and live broadcasts on: 

 

   

  
 

Our website at oadby-
wigston.gov.uk/meetings   

Our Civico platform at 
civico.net/oadby-wigston 

Your smart device using  
the Modern.Gov app 

 

~ Page 2 ~

https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://civico.net/oadby-wigston
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://civico.net/oadby-wigston
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073


Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 2 October 2024, 6.00 pm 

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council 

Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE HELD AT CIVIC SUITE 2, 
BROCKS HILL COUNCIL OFFICES, WASHBROOK LANE, OADBY, LEICESTER, LE2 5JJ ON 

WEDNESDAY, 2 OCTOBER 2024 COMMENCING AT 6.00 PM 

 
PRESENT 

 
Meeting ID:  2715 

 
K J Loydall Chair 
 

COUNCILLORS  

 
S S Athwal 
G A Boulter 
C S Gore 
S Z Haq 
I K Ridley 

 

 

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE  
 
S J Ball Legal & Democratic Services Manager / Deputy Monitoring Officer 
K Robson Democratic & Electoral Services Officer 
C Warren Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer 
 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE  
 
R Anderson Grant Thornton UK LLP 
R Deo 360 Assurance 
Cllr P Joshi Attending remotely 
 

13.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Kaufman. 
 
Councillor P Joshi attended the meeting remotely. 

14.   APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
Councillor S S Athwal substituted for Councillor J Kaufman. 

15.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None. 

16.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 9 July 2024 be taken as read, 
confirmed and approved. 

17.   ACTION LIST ARISING FROM THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

~ Page 3 ~

Agenda Item 4



Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 2 October 2024, 6.00 pm 

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council 

Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ 
 

There was no Action List arising from the previous meeting. 

18.   PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 
 
None. 
 

19.   VALUE FOR MONEY DELAY LETTER - OWBC 2023/24 
 
The Committee gave consideration to the Value For Money Delay Letter – OWBC 2023 / 
2024 (as set out on page 6 of the agenda reports pack), which presented a Letter of the 
Director of Grant Thornton. 
 
Councillor G A Boulter requested that the reasons given by the External Auditor as to why 
the Value for Money arrangements were not completed by 30 September 2024 be 
specifically minuted, namely the sector-wide difficulties facing the audit industry in terms 
of limited personnel resourcing and additional regulations impacting on workloads.  
 
Councillor G A Boulter drew the Committee’s attention the perceived hypocritical position 
of previous criticism levelled towards the Council in relation to having an insufficient 
number of internal auditors to complete the internal audit work and the current position of 
there now being a similar deficiency in external auditors to complete their audit work. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the Value For Money Delay Letter be considered and noted. 
 
In accordance with Rule 6.3 of Part 4 of the Constitution, the Chair moved for the order of 
business to be altered and taken in the order as reflected in the minutes.  
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLYRESOLVED THAT:  
 
The order of business be altered, accordingly. 

20.   EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (OCTOBER 2024) (URGENT ITEM) 
 
Under section 100B(4)(B) of the Local Government Act 1972, by reason of 
special circumstance, in that an additional item of business needed to be 
considered before the next meeting of the Audit Committee. 
  
The Chair was of this opinion in that this urgent item of business was to be considered at 
this meeting due to the time-sensitive need to provide Members with a necessary update 
at this meeting so that Members were able to make a fully informed decision at the next 
meeting in relation to the sign-off and approval of relevant accounts. 
  
The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (as set out at pages 2 - 15 
of the agenda update) which presented the External Audit Progress Report for October 
2024. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 

~ Page 4 ~



Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 2 October 2024, 6.00 pm 

Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby 
and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council 

Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JJ 
 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the report and Internal Audit Progress Report (October 2024) 
(as set out at Appendix 1) be considered and noted. 

21.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (OCTOBER 2024) 
 
The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (as set out at pages 7-29 of 
the agenda reports pack) which presented the Internal Audit Progress Report for October 
2024. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the report and Internal Audit Progress Report (October 2024) 
(as set out at Appendix 1) be considered and noted. 

22.   STRATEGIC RISK REGISTER UPDATE (Q1 2024/25) 
 
The Committee gave consideration to the report and appendix (as set out at pages 30-38 
of the agenda reports pack) which presented the Strategic Risk Register Update for 
quarter 1 2024/25. 
 
By affirmation of the meeting, it was 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT: 
 
The content of the report and Strategic Risk register Update (Q1 2024/2025) 
(as set out at Appendix 1) be considered and noted. 

 
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 6.51 pm 

 
 

~ Page 5 ~



 

 

 

Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 22 
January 2025 

Matter for 
Information 

 

Report Title: Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025) 

Report Author(s): Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer) 
 

Purpose of Report: To give an update on Internal Audits progress on delivering the 
2024/25 Audit Plan. 

Report Summary: Three final reports issued all at significant assurance, one proposed 
final report, three draft reports and three agreed terms of reference. 

Recommendation(s): That the progress made in delivering the 2024/25 Audit Plan 
be noted. 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer) 
(0116) 257 2759 
colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  
 
Laura Parsons (Finance Manager) 
(0116) 257 2694 
laura.parsons@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 
 
Tracey Barnard-Ghaut (Assistant Director) 
07545 502397 
tracey.banard-ghaut1@nhs.net 
 
Ruby Deo (Client Lead / Audit Manager) 
07545 502399 
ruby.deo@nhs.net 

Strategic Objectives: Our Council (SO1) 

Vision and Values: "Our Borough - The Place To Be” (Vision) 
Resourceful & Resilient (V4) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Financial: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Key Supplier / Partnership Failure (CR2) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
Effective Utilisation of Assets / Buildings (CR5) 
Regulatory Governance (CR6) 
Organisational / Transformational Change (CR8) 
Increased Fraud (CR10) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications directly arising from this report. 
EA not applicable 

~ Page 6 ~

Agenda Item 7

mailto:colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:laura.parsons@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:forename.surname@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:ruby.deo@nhs.net


 

 

Human Rights: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees: None. 

Background Papers: None.  

Appendices: 1. Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025) 

 

1. Information 

1.1 The Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025) attached at Appendix 1 provides an 
overall summary of the work undertaken to date relating to the Audit Plan.  The progress 
report covers the work carried out during the period April to December 2024. 

1.2 The report identifies progress made in relation to the completion of work from the Councils 
2024/25 Internal Audit Plan and brings to your attention matters relevant to your 
responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee. 

1.3 Internal Audit progress reports are presented to every meeting of the Audit Committee so 
that Members are up to date with Internal Audits work and findings. 

1.4 Under the Local Government Act 1972, Section 151 and the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2011 (as amended), the Council has a responsibility to maintain an adequate 
and effective Internal Audit function.  At Oadby and Wigston Borough Council this 
responsibility is currently being delivered by 360 Assurance. 

1.5 In responding to this requirement, the Internal Audit service works to best practice as set 
out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (2017), which is published by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. 

 

 

 

~ Page 7 ~



 

Advisory | Counter Fraud | Internal Audit and Assurance | IT Risk Management and Assurance | PPV | Security Management Services | Training 
 

1 

Contents 

 

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council  

Internal Audit Progress Report  

Audit Committee: 22nd January 2025 

 

 

~
 P

age 8 ~

A
ppendix 1



 

 

Contents 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Reports prepared by 360 Assurance and addressed to Oadby and Wigston Borough Council’s directors or officers are prepared for the sole use of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council, and no 
responsibility is taken by 360 Assurance or the auditors to any director or officer in their individual capacity. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared 
for, and is not intended for, any other purpose and a person who is not a party to the agreement for the provision of Internal Audit between Oadby and Wigston Borough Council and 360 
Assurance dated 1 April 2024 shall not have any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.  

The matters reported are only those which have come to our attention during the course of our work and that we believe need to be brought to the attention of Oadby and Wigston Borough 
Council. They are not a comprehensive record of all matters arising and 360 Assurance is not responsible for reporting all risks or all internal control weaknesses to Oadby and Wigston Borough 
Council.  

The appointment of 360 Assurance does not replace or limit the Council’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that its operations are conducted in accordance 
with the law, guidance, good governance and any applicable standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  

This report has been prepared solely for your use in accordance with the terms of the aforementioned agreement (including the limitations of liability set out therein) and must not be quoted in 
whole or in part without the prior written consent of 360 Assurance.

Section Page Appendices Page 

Introduction 1 A: Internal audit plan 5 

Internal audit update 2 B: Summary of audits completed 6 

  C: Terms of Reference issued 9 

  D: Key Performance Indicators 13 

  E: Action tracker 14 

~
 P

age 9 ~



 

 

1 

Introduction 

 

This paper identifies progress made in relation to completion of work from the Council’s 
2024/25 Internal Audit Plan and brings to your attention matters relevant to your 
responsibilities as members of the Audit Committee.  

This progress report provides a summary of Internal Audit activity in a format agreed with the 
Audit Committee and complies with the requirements of Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.  

The Client Manager meets with the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer regularly to discuss 
progress against the plan and to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of this work which 
informs the Council’s plan.  

This progress report covers the work carried out during the period 1st April 2024 to 1st January 
2025. 

 

Action required  

The Audit Committee is asked to:  

Note the key messages and progress made against the Internal Audit Plan since the last 
meeting. 

Receive the information and guidance papers produced by 360 Assurance and seek assurance 
from the Council that the issues raised are being considered and, where necessary, addressed 
by the Council. 

Members are invited to raise any questions. 

 

Key contacts 

Leanne Hawkes, Director 

M – 07545 423040 

E – leanne.hawkes@nhs.net 

 

Tracey Barnard-Ghaut, Assistant Director 

M – 07545 502397 

E- Tracey.Barnard-Ghaut1@nhs.net 

 

Ruby Deo, Client Manager 

M – 07545 502399 

E – Ruby.Deo@nhs.net 

 

 

 

~
 P

age 10 ~

mailto:leanne.hawkes@nhs.net
mailto:Tracey.Barnard-Ghaut1@nhs.net
mailto:Ruby.Deo@nhs.net


 

 

2 

Internal Audit update 

 

Key messages 

Since the last Audit Committee we have: 
 

• Issued 2 final reports relating to the 2023/24 plan: 
-   Financial ledger management and reporting  
-   Housing allocations  

 

2024/25 planned work 

• Issued 3 final reports: 
- Waste management project assurance 
- Housing repairs procurement  
- Strategic Risk Management  

 

• Issued 1 proposed final report: 
- Food safety 

 

• Issued 3 draft reports: 
- Business continuity 
- Treasury management  
- Housing rents 
 

• Agreed 5 terms of reference: 
- Payroll and expenses  
- S106 Agreements  
- IT Governance Healthcheck 
- Homelessness 
- Financial ledger management and reporting  

 

• Held planning meetings and undertaken fieldwork to progress 
the audit plan. 

 

 

 

Contract performance 

 

2024/25 
Planned audits 

Audits completed to report stage % complete 

13 

7 54% 

Audits in progress  % in progress 

6 46% 

 

The Internal Audit Plan in Appendix A provides a detailed breakdown of 
delivery. 

We have provided at Appendix D a summary of our performance in 
relation to Key Performance Indicators detailed in our Service Level 
Agreement with the Council. 

~
 P

age 11 ~



 

 

3 

Internal Audit update 

Service benefits and other matters 
 

 

Events 

Papers from our events are available on our website https://www.360assurance.co.uk/events/  

 

 

Client briefing and other publications 

We regularly publish articles and all of these are on our website.  

Our publications and monthly briefings are available at: https://www.360assurance.co.uk/news-publications/ 

 

 

 

 

~
 P

age 12 ~

https://www.360assurance.co.uk/events/
https://www.360assurance.co.uk/news-publications/


 

 

4 

Internal Audit update 

 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

Internal Audit Outturn 

The assurance levels provided for all reviews undertaken is 
summarised below: 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Implementation of internal audit actions 

The table below shows the current status of progress against 
internal audit actions: 

2024/25 Implementation of internal audit actions 

High risk actions closed on time (0/0) 

First follow up rate – high and medium risks 69% (7/9) 

First follow up rate – all risks 78% (11/16) 

% of actions subject to revised due dates 8% 

Overall implementation rate  69% 

Historic Actions 

Historic actions (pre 1 April 2024) outstanding 10 

Further details on action tracking are included in Appendix E. 

 

 

 

 

  

• None 

• Housing Repairs Procurement  
• Waste Management Project Assurance 
• Strategic Risk Management 
• Financial Management & Reporting (2023-24) 
• Housing Allocations (2023-24) 

• None 

• None 

• None 

• None 

Substantive Assurance 

Significant Assurance 

Moderate Assurance 

Limited Assurance 

Weak Assurance 

Other 

~
 P

age 13 ~



 

 

5 

Appendix A - Internal audit plan 

The table below summarises progress against the 2024/25 Internal Audit Plan. 

Ref. Audit Planned 
timing 

Status Assurance Level 
provided  

Date reported to 
Audit Committee 

Head of Finance – S151 Officer 

1 Head of Internal Audit Opinion (core)  Q1-4 ToR issued – ongoing during year   ~ ~ 

2 Strategic Risk Management (core) Q3-4 Completed Significant January 2025 

2 National Fraud Initiative  Q1-4 Ongoing    

3 Financial Management and Reporting (core) Q4 ToR agreed ~ ~ 

4 Financial Systems – Treasury Management (core) Q4 Draft report Stage ~ ~ 

5 Housing Repairs Procurement review Q3 Completed Significant  January 2025 

6 Grant Certifications  Q1-4 Ongoing throughout the year Certifications  

Head of Customer Services and Transformation 

7 Human Resources - Staff Lone Working (core) Q3 Fieldwork in progress  ~ ~ 

8 Payroll and Expenses  Q3-4 Fieldwork in progress ~ ~ 

9 IT Audit (IT governance health check) Q3-4 Fieldwork in progress ~ ~ 

10 Business Continuity Q2 Draft Report Stage  ~ ~ 

11 Waste Management (project assurance)  Q2 Completed Significant January 2025 

12 Food Safety Q2-3 Proposed final report issued ~ ~ 

Head of Built Environment   

13 Housing Rents   Q2-3 Draft Report Stage  ~ ~ 

14 Homelessness  Q4 ToR agreed ~ ~ 

15 S106 Agreements  Q3-4 Fieldwork in progress ~ ~ 

 

~
 P

age 14 ~



 

 

6 

Appendix B – Summary of audits completed 

This section summarises the reports finalised relating to the 2023/24 internal audit plan.  

2324/OWBC/15 Financial Management and Reporting 

Objectives and 
scope 

The overall objective of our review was to provide an independent assurance opinion on the: 

• effectiveness of the Council’s arrangements to ensure the integrity of data held in the financial ledger. 

• robustness of in-year financial reporting arrangements. 

Audit opinion Moderate Assurance 

Summary 
findings 

We reviewed the arrangements in place within the Council to ensure the integrity of data held in the financial ledger.  

Medium risk issues have been identified in respect of the following: 

• a lack of segregation of duties in respect of journal authorisation 

• delays in the timely completion and management review of control account reconciliations and lack of evidence of review 

• prompt removal/de-activation of access to the system where officers leave the Council 

We reviewed the robustness of in-year financial reporting arrangements but were not provided with evidence to confirm that finance reports are 
derived directly from the ledger. 

An action plan has been agreed to address the areas of improvement identified. All other controls tested were operating satisfactorily. 

 

2324/OWBC/18 Housing Allocations  

Objectives and 
scope 

The overall objective of our review was to review the systems and processes in place for managing housing allocations.  In order to achieve this 
objective, we reviewed the following controls: 

• The housing allocations system is operated in accordance with legislation and appropriate controls are in place to ensure that access is 
restricted and updates are prompt and accurate. 

• Applications to join the housing register to bid for properties are processed promptly and accurately in accordance with policy. 

• The bidding process for properties is run in a fair and consistent manner and offers are made promptly to winning bidders on the basis of a 
fully validated bid. 

• The housing allocations system is subject to appropriate levels of management review and monitoring and information is regularly 
reported to senior management and committee. 

Audit opinion Significant Assurance  

Summary 
findings 

The Council has an up-to-date Housing Allocations Policy.  The system (Home Connections) which is used to deliver the Choice Based Lettings 
scheme was found to have effective security and integrity controls in place, although evidence of these controls should be shared with the Council 
in accordance with the terms of the contract. 

Testing on a sample of applications confirmed that evidence to support eligibility was available in all cases and that ‘priority’ or ‘high’ bandings were 

~
 P

age 15 ~



 

 

7 

Appendix B – Summary of audits completed 

2324/OWBC/18 Housing Allocations  

supported by evidence and appropriately authorised.  Staffing issues have however impacted on the Council’s ability to conduct regular reviews of 
applicants on the Housing Register (particularly ‘non-bidders’) and to approve care leavers for inclusion on the Housing Register promptly. 

Testing on a sample of applicants that have now been housed indicated that the bidding process is running effectively.  A significant number of the 
dwellings that are bid for belong to various housing associations that participate in the Choice Based Lettings scheme run by the Council. It was 
noted that a formally signed agreement is not in place with one of these housing associations and that there is no facility within any of the other 
signed agreements that allows the Council to confirm that housing associations are conducting final eligibility and banding checks prior to letting 
homes to successful bidders. 

There are four customer service standards that are monitored in respect of the Choice Based Lettings scheme and our audit has noted some data is 
not recorded in the performance management results in relation to one of the standards and issues have been identified in respect of the 
regularity with which performance against these standards is published.   

An action plan has been agreed to address the areas of improvement identified. 

 

The following section summarises the final reports from the 2024/25 internal audit plan. 

 

2425/OWBC/01 Waste Management Project Assurance  

Objectives and 
scope 

The overall objective of our review was to ensure that the Council applies a robust project management process to the transition from weekly to 
fortnightly bin collections.  In order to achieve this objective, we have reviewed the following controls: 

• Formal project management arrangements are in place, which have been designed to ensure that the project to move from weekly to 
fortnightly bin collections is delivered in a timely and cost effective manner that delivers the required outcomes/benefits in accordance with 
the Council’s Project Framework.  

Audit opinion Significant Assurance  

Summary 
findings 

The audit confirmed that the Council has followed its Programme / Corporate Project procedures to scope and deliver the project to move to 
fortnightly waste and recycling bin collections.  This project had a specific scope in relation to waste transformation with the move from weekly to 
fortnightly waste bin collections as part of an overall Sustainability Plan approved as part of the 2024-25 MTFS in December 2023. 

The audit identified that given the specific scope of this project and timescales involved a full business case was not completed.  It was noted that a 
formal benefits realisation plan had not been developed as part of the overall project. An action has been agreed to review other benefits realised. 

 
 
 

~
 P

age 16 ~



 

 

8 

Appendix B – Summary of audits completed 

2425/OWBC/03 Housing Repairs Procurement  

Objectives and 
scope 

The overall objective of our review was to ensure that the contract for housing repairs has been procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules, with particular reference to confirming that competition to award the contract has been fair and equitable to all interested parties.   

In order to achieve this objective, we reviewed the following controls: 

• A detailed contract specification was provided to all interested parties that provided clear instructions on the tender process to be followed and 
which allowed for open competition from all relevant contractors. 

• The opportunity to bid for the housing repairs contract was advertised fairly in accordance with the requirements of Contract Procedure Rules. 

• Tender submissions were received and evaluated in a fair and equitable manner that was consistently applied for all bids submitted. 

• The contract award process followed was consistent with the requirements outlined in Contract Procedure Rules. 

Audit opinion Significant Assurance  

Summary 
findings 

The audit concluded that the process followed to tender the responsive repairs service was undertaken in accordance with the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules and that existing contractors were provided with sufficient opportunity to bid for the contract. The action to tender the housing 
repairs service was necessary to address a previous audit finding that the Council needed to take action in order to comply with its contract 
procedure rules.  Whilst the audit identified two areas where evidence of communications with existing contractors could have been made more 
formal, we are satisfied that these contractors were actively encouraged to place bids.  The existing model for undertaking responsive repairs 
involved the use of a number of companies that specialised in specific elements of the repairs service, such as electrical works, plumbing and 
doors/windows. The tender for the responsive repairs contract was for the whole service, which meant that a number of the specialist existing 
contractors did not have the full skillset required to bid for the work. The Housing Manger however reported that a joint bid would have been 
acceptable and that this option was discussed with existing contractors but was not taken up.  

An action plan has been agreed for three low risk actions to be implemented. 

 

2425/OWBC/05 Strategic Risk Management 

Objectives and 
scope 

The overall objective of our review was to provide an independent assurance opinion on how strategic and corporate risks are managed by the 
Council and its committees. In order to achieve this objective, we have reviewed the following controls:  

• there is a fit for purpose Risk Register in place which has had been developed with appropriate engagement from the Council  

• there is a clear programme to report the Risk Register to the Council and its assurance committees during the year which is adhered to  

• the Risk Register is used as a live tool for managing risks and supports robust discussion at the Council and its assurance committees  

• the Audit Committee fulfils its responsibilities in relation to the Risk Register as set out within its Terms of Reference  

• risks in the Risk Register reflect those being faced by the organisation and are aligned to the organisation’s objectives 

• meaningful actions are taken to mitigate risks which impact on risk scores, controls and assurances 

Audit opinion Significant Assurance  

~
 P

age 17 ~



 

 

9 

Appendix B – Summary of audits completed 

2425/OWBC/05 Strategic Risk Management 

Summary 
findings 

The Council has a Risk Management Policy in place having last been reviewed in January 2023. The Corporate Risk Register has been presented to 
the Senior Leadership Team and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis in line with the Risk Management Policy. We have raised one medium risk 
finding and associated action for the Council to align the Corporate Risk Register to the Corporate Strategy approved by the Council in July 2024. 
Three low risk findings and associated actions have been made, including:  

• to further enhance the assurances identified in the Corporate Risk Register;  

• to reflect the impact of completed actions and controls in the Corporate Risk Register; and  

• the Risk Management Group should meet on a quarterly basis in line with the Risk Management Policy with records of discussion maintained. 

 

 

 

~
 P

age 18 ~



 

 

10 

Appendix C – Terms of Reference agreed 

The following terms of reference have been agreed with Council officers. 

ToR 8 Staff Lone Working  

Introduction  The Council has a legal duty under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, to ensure the 
safety and welfare of anyone working within the Council as far as reasonably practicable. 

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) defines lone workers as those who work by themselves without close or direct supervision and has published health 
and safety guidance on the risks of lone working aimed at anyone who employs or engages lone workers. This guidance was revised in March 2020 to take 
account of COVID-19 and an increased number of lone workers working at home and a rise in individuals completing duties alone due to social distancing 
measures. 

Employees may be required to work alone within resident’s homes; communities; or in isolated office or public premises for all or part of their working 
hours. As a result, lone workers can be vulnerable and exposed to hazards including an increased risk of physical or verbal abuse and harassment from 
residents, their relatives or members of the public. 

Workers also have responsibilities to take reasonable care of themselves and other people affected by their work activities and to co-operate with their 
employers in meeting their legal obligations. 

Objectives 
and scope 

The overall objective of our review is to assess the adequacy of the systems and processes established to ensure the safety of lone workers working within 
the Council’s services. To achieve this objective, we will review the following controls: 

• Policies and procedures are in place for staff lone working  

• Training is provided to current and new members of staff on the lone working policy 

• Staff comply with lone working policies and procedures  

• Lone working devices and equipment are provided to all members of staff where necessary 

• Incidents are recorded and reported 

• Governance processes are in place to gain assurance that the Council’s policy and procedures are being complied with. 

Limitations of scope: The scope of our work is limited to the areas identified in the agreed Terms of Reference. Sample testing will be undertaken to review 
the above processes are in place.  The review will be limited to those members of staff directly employed by the Council.    

Methodology 
and approach 

To deliver this audit we will: 

• document, via walk-through testing, our understanding of the system processes and controls 

• undertake risk-based sample testing to assess the effectiveness of the controls in place, identifying risks and any mitigating controls 

• review reports and committee papers to identify and assess the reporting and monitoring arrangements in place 

 
  

~
 P

age 19 ~



 

 

11 

Appendix C – Terms of Reference agreed 

 

ToR 9 Homelessness  

Introduction Each local housing authority is required to consider housing needs within its area, including the needs of homeless households, to whom local authorities 
have a statutory duty to provide assistance. The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 significantly reformed England’s homelessness legislation by placing 
duties on local authorities to intervene at earlier stages to prevent homelessness in their areas. It also requires housing authorities to provide homelessness 
services to all those affected, not just those who have ‘priority need’. These include: 

• An enhanced prevention duty extending the period a household is threatened with homelessness from 28 days to 56 days, meaning that housing 
authorities are required to work with people to prevent homelessness at an earlier stage; and 

• A new duty for those who are already homeless so that housing authorities will support households for 56 days to relieve their homelessness by 
helping them to secure accommodation. 

The Council utilises the Home Connections IT system to manage homelessness cases. As at August 2024, the following statistics were available: 

• 61 families in temporary accommodation. 

• 42 applicants at the relief stage. 

• 35 applicants at prevention stage. 

• 88 main duty cases. 

Temporary accommodation is a mix of the Council’s own hostel, private rented properties on a three year lease, the Council’s housing stock and bed & 
breakfast. The forecasted homelessness expenditure budget for 2024/25 is expected to be £770k, with an income budget of £772k (mainly grants). 

Objectives 
and scope 

The overall objective of our review is to ensure that the Council has arrangements in place to manage homelessness in line with the required legislation.  In 
order to achieve this objective, we will review the following controls: 

• There is a detailed Homelessness Strategy in place that demonstrates how the Council meets the requirements of all relevant legislation. 

• Processes and procedures are in place and implemented to deliver the Homelessness Strategy and meet the requirements of homelessness legislation. 

• Access to the IT system used to implement the Council’s Homelessness Strategy is restricted.   

• There are sufficient, trained staff resources to implement all aspects of homelessness legislation. 

• There are appropriate monitoring and reporting arrangements in place. 

Limitations of scope: The scope of our work will be limited to the areas identified in the agreed Terms of Reference.  

Methodology 
and approach 

To deliver this audit we will: 

• interview key staff to determine and document the current controls and processes in operation. 

• undertake sample testing to confirm compliance with controls and processes as recorded. 

 
  

~
 P

age 20 ~



 

 

12 

Appendix C – Terms of Reference agreed 

 

ToR 10 IT Governance Healthcheck  

Introduction The Council’s ICT service was insourced in February 2022 from the Leicestershire ICT Partnership, hosted by Hinckley & Bosworth Borough Council. A new 
ICT team was established with responsibilities for supporting users and managing all corporate IT infrastructure, networks and clients.  

The IT team is led by the Corporate Projects, Systems and IT Manager. The Head of Customer Service and Transformation is the Senior Leadership Team lead 
for IT. The IT team comprises of four members of staff and their roles and responsibilities are documented. There is a separate Systems team who are 
responsible for managing corporate IT applications and they also report to the Corporate Projects, Systems and IT Manager.  

At a corporate level, there is Member engagement via the IT Working Group and IT is a standing agenda item at the Corporate Management Team meetings. 
An IT Risk Register was established in May 2022.  

An IT Security presentation was provided by the Corporate Projects, Systems and IT Manager in April 2024 which provided an overview of IT security to the 
members.  

The Council’s Corporate Strategy was approved by the Council in July 2024 and the Corporate Strategy action plan includes a target of a Digital Strategy being 
developed and approved during quarter two of 2025/26. 

The Council’s Strategic Risk Register dated April 2024 identified the following strategic risk with a current score of 6 and rated yellow: 

• Cyber Threat/Security, Cyber security is seen as an ICT risk and not a corporate risk that needs to be managed and monitored by senior management. 
We completed an IT governance healthcheck in 2022/23 and provided advisory recommendations on the governance arrangements for the newly established 
IT team to develop.  As part of the agreed internal audit plan for 2024/25 it was agreed to review the IT governance arrangements in place.  

Objectives 
and scope 

The overall objective of our review is to provide independent assurance via a ‘healthcheck’ on the overarching governance and control arrangements in 
place for the ICT team to provide an independent assurance opinion.  To achieve this objective, we will review the following controls: 

• There is a defined structure in place to manage the provision of ICT services.  

• Arrangements are in place for the development of an IT Strategy/development plan and objectives for the IT service have been defined. 

• Service levels have been agreed and defined. 

• Performance measures are in place for ICT and they are regularly monitored and reported upon. 

• Training in IT security is provided to staff and members of the Council. 

• IT risks are identified, logged and managed.  

Limitations of scope: The scope of our work will be limited to the areas identified in the agreed Terms of Reference. Our review will not include business 
continuity or cyber security arrangements. Our review will be limited to the extent to which governance arrangements over ICT are in place and will not 
include review of the operation of IT systems used by the Council. 

Methodology 
and 
approach 

To deliver this audit we will: 

• document, via walk-through testing, our understanding of the system processes and controls 

• undertake risk-based sample testing to assess the effectiveness of the controls in place, identifying risks and any mitigating controls 

 

~
 P

age 21 ~



 

 

13 

Appendix C – Terms of Reference agreed 

ToR 11 Financial Ledger Management and Reporting   

Introduction Councils are dependent upon their financial systems to provide accurate, complete and timely data to support their financial management and reporting. 
In particular, an organisation relies heavily on its financial ledger to provide the basic data necessary to inform its reporting of income, expenditure and 
budgetary performance. In turn, the financial ledger is populated via external systems and sub-ledgers including payroll, accounts payable and accounts 
receivable.  An annual review of the organisation’s financial ledger and reporting key controls forms part of our core audit programme. 

Objectives 
and scope 

The overall objective of our review is to provide an independent assurance opinion on the: 
• effectiveness of the organisation’s arrangements to ensure the integrity of data held in the financial ledger; 
• robustness of in-year financial reporting arrangements. 

To achieve this objective, we will review the following controls using sample testing: 
Budget Setting  

• budgets are set in a structured, comprehensive, and robust manner in accordance with the organisation's objectives and the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS).   

Financial ledger 
• automated arrangements or regular manual checks ensure the financial ledger is in balance 
• internal checks are in place to confirm that data input to the financial ledger from external feeder systems is complete, accurate and timely 
• the use of suspense accounts is kept to a minimum – accounts are only used for the short-term posting of unidentified entries and are cleared 

promptly 
• control accounts are regularly and promptly reconciled to information outside the financial ledger and reconciliations are reviewed and authorised 
• cash/bank reconciliations are regularly and promptly prepared and reviewed with reconciling items cleared in a timely manner 
• there is segregation of duties over the preparation, authorisation and input of journals – journals are supported by a clear narrative description and 

adequate evidence 
• access to the financial ledger is restricted to approved individuals 
• robust system back-up and restore procedures are in place (for the financial ledger and the organisation’s network where supporting records are 

held). 
Financial reporting 

• arrangements are in place to confirm that the latest agreed financial plan is accurately loaded to the financial ledger 
• there is an adequate audit trail to evidence that financial reports reconcile to the financial ledger  
• financial reports are produced promptly each quarter in accordance with a documented closedown timetable. 

Limitations of scope: The scope of our work will be limited to the areas identified in the agreed Terms of Reference. We will not comment on the 
organisation’s in-year financial performance or assess its financial standing. 

Methodology 
and 
approach 

To deliver this audit we will: 
• hold interviews with key officers 
• review supporting documentation (electronic and hardcopy) for all specified controls 
• undertake walkthrough, substantive and compliance testing on a risk and sample basis to assess the design and operation of the controls in place, 

performing data analytics as appropriate. 

~
 P

age 22 ~



 

 

14 

Appendix D – Key Performance Indicators 

As part of our contract with the Trust we agreed a number of Key Performance Indicators. Those that can be measured on a quarterly basis are 
included below; others will be reported in our Annual Report due in June 2025. Please note these are compiled on a cumulative basis.  

So far in 2024/25 we have issued eleven Terms of Reference, two draft reports in respect of 2024/25 and 6 final reports in respect of 2023/24: 

360 Assurance KPIs Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Issue a Client Satisfaction Questionnaire following completion of every audit. 100% 100% 100% 100%  

Terms of Reference issued before commencement of the audit. 100% 100% 100% 100%  

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit meeting. 100% 100% Not applicable 100%  

Final report issued within 5 working days of executive sign-off. 100% 100% Not applicable 100%  

Overall client satisfaction rating of satisfied or highly satisfied. 90% No responses 
received in Q1 

No responses 
received in Q2 

No responses 
received in Q3 

 

Client KPIs Target Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 

Terms of Reference to be agreed within 10 working days of being received. 100% 100% 100% 100%  

Information has been provided and staff have been available to meet the 
timescales set out within the Terms of Reference. 

100% 100% 100% 100%  

Management response received within 10 working days of receiving the final 
draft report. 

100% 100% Not applicable 50%  

~
 P

age 23 ~



 

 

15 

Appendix E – Action tracker 

The chart below summarises the progress against agreed actions (by risk rating) for Internal Audit for 2024/25: 

 
 

Table 1 below provides a summary of actions due on or by 1st January 2025 that have yet to be implemented (this includes actions where 
extensions to original implementation dates have been agreed).  

Table 1 

Audit reference/title by Executive Lead Low Medium High Total Comments 

Head of Built Environment  1 1 - 2  

Private Sector Housing – Enforcement  - 1 - 1 Deadline for implementation has been moved to provide further capacity to explore 
viability of further Selective Licensing scheme, as a specific HMO policy is not a 
statutory requirement and there is already a process currently in place. 

Following the approval of consultation for a further Selective Licensing scheme within 
the Borough, amendments to HMO management and charges will be brought in to 
coincide with any new scheme with new policy and charging scheme to become live 
concurrently subject to relevant approvals. 

December 2024 update: 

I would ask that the deadline be amended to 31/03/25 so this can be considered 

~
 P

age 24 ~



 

 

16 

Appendix E – Action tracker 

Audit reference/title by Executive Lead Low Medium High Total Comments 

following completion of the consultation and a decision on a further selective 
licensing scheme which is scheduled for early February 2025.  You may be aware this 
is a critical piece of work which will take considerable resource to progress and one 
which is considered a priority.    

Original due date: 1st April 2024 

Revised Implementation date: 5th December 2024 

Revised implementation date: 31st March 2025 

Disabled Facilities Grant  1 - - 1 Engage with Lightbulb to refine performance data so that OWBC specific data is 
reported and measurable performance targets reported against. 

Original due date: 31st December 2024 

No updates received 

Head of Customer Services and Transformation  - 1 - 1  

Procurement  - 1 - 1 Approval and reporting of high level expenditure in line with Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules 

Original due date: 30th November 2024 

No updates have been received 

Section 151 Officer 2 - - 2  

Financial Systems  2 - - 2 Debt recovery action and Debt invoices raised. 

Original due dates: 30th November and 31st December 2024 respectively 

Updates have been received and are in the process of being validated 

TOTAL 3 2 - 5  

~
 P

age 25 ~



 

 

17 

Appendix E – Action tracker 

Table 2 below provides details of all historic actions (with original due dates before 1st April 2024) not yet fully implemented. 

Table 2 

Audit reference/title by Executive Lead Low Medium High Total Comments 

Chief Finance Officer / S151 1 - - 1  

Financial Systems  1 - - 1 Reports of aged debt levels being periodically provided to the PFD Committee.  

Original Due Date: 30th September 2023 

Revised Due Date: 30th June 2024  

Updates have been received and are in the process of being validated. 

Head of Law and Democracy  1 6 1 8  

Grounds Maintenance and Street Cleaning  1 6 1 8 The responsible officer is off on long term sickness and responsibility for these 
actions has been transferred to another officer.  

Original Due Date: 3 due by 30th June 2023 and 5 due by 30th September 2023 

Revised Implementation date: 31st December 2024 

Head of Customer Services and Transformation  1  - 1  

Payroll  1 - - 1 Contract Documentation – decision on the provision of payroll services. 

Action Update: Due to organisational change priorities within 2023/24 it has only 
been possible to spend limited time on researching other payroll service options 
and this work will continue in 2024/25 with a view of a formal decision being 
made by the end of 2024/25 (target changed). We will review current contractual 
arrangements with EMSS during 2024/25 to more clearly set service delivery 
priorities.  

Original Due Date: 31st March 2024 

Revised implementation date: 31st March 2025 

TOTAL 3 6 1 10  

 

~
 P

age 26 ~



 

 

 

Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 22 
January 2025 

Matter for Decision 

 

Report Title: Appointment of Internal Auditors 

Report Author(s): Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / Section 151) 
 

Purpose of Report: To appoint new Internal Auditors. 

Report Summary: To approve South West Audit Partnership as our new Internal Auditors 
from 1/4/2025. 

Recommendation(s): That the recommendation as set out at paragraph 1.6 be 
approved. 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / Section 151) 
(0116) 257 2759 
colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  
 
Laura Parsons (Finance Manager) 
(0116) 257 2694 
laura.parsons@oadby-wigston.gov.uk 

Strategic Objectives: Our Council (SO1) 
Our Economy (SO3) 
Our Partners (SO5) 

Vision and Values: Resourceful & Resilient (V4) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Financial: The implications are as set out at paragraph 1.5 of this report. 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Key Supplier / Partnership Failure (CR2) 
Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
Economy / Regeneration (CR9) 
Increased Fraud (CR10) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable. 

Human Rights: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

~ Page 27 ~

Agenda Item 8

mailto:colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:laura.parsons@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


 

 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees: None. 

Background Papers: None. 

Appendices: None. 

 

1. Internal Audit Provision 

1.1 Under the Local Government Act 1972, section 151 and the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Council has a responsibility to maintain an adequate 
and effective Internal Audit function. At Oadby & Wigston Borough Council, during 
2022/23 this responsibility was delivered by CW Audit Services (as at April 2023 CW Audit 
Services merged with 360 Assurance). In responding to this requirement, the Internal 
Audit service works to best practice as set out in the 2017 Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards, which is published by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA). 

1.2 Following CW Audit Services merging with 360 Assurance the Council were informed of a 
significant increase in the cost of the audit provision.  The cost was renegotiated for the 
service for 2024/25; however, the costs were due to increase significantly for 2025/26 
onwards.  The 360 Assurance contract for Internal Audit provision is due to end on the 31 
March 2025. 

1.3 Upon notification of the increase the Council undertook an exercise to see if alternative 
providers of the service could be found within the current cost envelope.  Enquiries were 
made with another Leicestershire Local Authority to join their audit partnership, however 
due to capacity issues they were unable to offer us a partnership. 

1.4 Further enquiries were made with other Internal Audit providers until we identified a 
suitable not-for-profit teckal company – SWAP.  SWAP is one of the largest partnerships in 
England and Wales providing Internal Audit services to Local Authorities, schools, housing 
associations, fire and rescue and charities.   

1.5 Discussions have been held with SWAP and they have presented to SLT who have given 
their approval to pursue a partnership with SWAP within our budget envelope of £93,000 
pa.  SWAP can offer us a partnership with them from 1st April 2025 providing us with the 
required number of Audit days, subject to approval by their Board of Directors.  For further 
information please see the link to their website (https://www.swapaudit.co.uk/). 

1.6 Recommendation 

That members approve OWBC entering into a partnership with SWAP for the provision of 
our Internal Audit services from 1st April 2025. 

 

 

 

~ Page 28 ~

https://www.swapaudit.co.uk/


~
 P

age 29 ~

A
genda Item

 9



Commercial in confidence

grantthornton.co.uk

Richard Anderson 

~
 P

age 30 ~

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/globalassets/1.-member-firms/united-kingdom/pdf/annual-reports/transparency-report-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 31 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

~
 P

age 32 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 33 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 34 ~

https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2024-07-30/hcws46


Commercial in confidence

•

•~
 P

age 35 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 36 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 37 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 38 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 39 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 40 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 41 ~



Commercial in confidence









•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 42 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 43 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•











~
 P

age 44 ~



Commercial in confidence

Assessment

  





















~
 P

age 45 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 46 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

~
 P

age 47 ~



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

~
 P

age 48 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 49 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 50 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 51 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 52 ~

https://www.grantthornton.global/globalassets/1.-member-firms/global/grant-thornton-international-ltd-transparency-report-may-2023.pdf


Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 53 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 54 ~



Commercial in confidence





 

 



















~
 P

age 55 ~



Commercial in confidence







~
 P

age 56 ~



Commercial in confidence







~
 P

age 57 ~



Commercial in confidence





✓

~
 P

age 58 ~



Commercial in confidence





✓

~
 P

age 59 ~



Commercial in confidence





✓

~
 P

age 60 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 61 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 62 ~



Commercial in confidence



















~
 P

age 63 ~



Commercial in confidence

















~
 P

age 64 ~



Commercial in confidence



















~
 P

age 65 ~



Commercial in confidence











~
 P

age 66 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 67 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 68 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 69 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 70 ~



Commercial in confidence

~
 P

age 71 ~



Commercial in confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP

17th Floor

103 Colmore Row

Birmingham

B3 3AG

[Date]

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Oadby & 

Wigston Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2024 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to 

whether the Council financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial 

Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2023/24 and applicable law. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered 

necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the Council’s financial statements in accordance with 

International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24 ("the Code"); in particular the financial statements are fairly 

presented in accordance therewith.

We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Council and these matters have 

been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material effect on the 

financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-compliance with requirements of 

any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-

compliance.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to 

prevent and detect fraud.

Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are 

reasonable. Such accounting estimates include the valuation of land and building assets and council dwellings, 

and the net pension liability. We are satisfied that the material judgements used in the preparation of the 

financial statements are soundly based, in accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial 

statements. We understand our responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, 

assumptions or source data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these 

alternatives were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the 

significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate 

to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with the Code and 

adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension scheme 

assets and liabilities for IAS19 Employee Benefits disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm 

that all settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all 

significant post-employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted for. 

Except as disclosed in the financial statements:

a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent;

b. none of the assets of the Council has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged; and

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items 

requiring separate disclosure.

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in 

accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial Reporting 

Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have considered the adjusted misstatements, and misclassification and disclosures changes schedules 

included in your Audit Findings Report. The Council’s financial statements have been amended for these 

misstatements, misclassifications and disclosure changes and are free of material misstatements, including 

omissions.

We have considered the unadjusted misstatements schedule included in your Audit Findings Report and in the 

appendix. We have not adjusted the financial statements for these misstatements brought to our attention as 

they are immaterial to the results of the Council and its financial position at the year-end. The financial 

statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets and 

liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

The prior period adjustment disclosed in Note xx to the financial statements is accurate and complete. There 

are no other prior period errors to bring to your attention.

We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Council’s financial statements 

should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any material uncertainties related to going 

concern on the grounds that: 

a. the nature of the Council means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its operations in 

their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of 

accounting because, in such an event, services it performs can be expected to continue to 

be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial statements on a going 

concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial statements

b. the financial reporting framework permits the entity to prepare its financial statements on the 

basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and 

c. the Council’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant to 

going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Council's ability to continue as a going concern 

need to be made in the financial statements.

~
 P

age 72 ~



Commercial in confidence

The Council has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material effect on the 

Council’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

Information Provided

We have provided you with:

a. access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 

Council’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

c. access to persons within the Council via remote arrangements from whom you determined it 

necessary to obtain audit evidence.

We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 

materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that 

affects the Council and involves:

a. management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 

financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and 

regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council's related parties and all the related party relationships and 

transactions of which we are aware.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 

when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Council's risk assurance and 

governance framework, and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks that are not disclosed 

within the AGS.

Narrative Report

The disclosures within the Narrative Report fairly reflect our understanding of the Council's financial and 

operating performance over the period covered by the Council’s financial statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Council’s Audit Committee at its meeting on 22 

January 2025.

Yours faithfully

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Name……………………………

Position………………………….

Date…………………………….

Signed on behalf of the Council

~
 P

age 73 ~



Commercial in confidence

Independent auditor's report to the members of Oadby & Wigston Borough Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Oadby & Wigston Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year 

ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, notes to the core financial statements, 

the Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement on the Housing Revenue 

Account Statement, and notes to the Housing Revenue Account, the Collection Fund Account and notes to the 

Collection Fund Account, and the Statement of Accounting Policies. The financial reporting framework that has 

been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2024 and of its 

expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable 

law, as required by the Code of Audit Practice (2024) (“the Code of Audit Practice”) approved by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 

‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are independent of 

the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are responsible for concluding on the appropriateness of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 

modify the auditor’s opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

In our evaluation of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)’s conclusions, and in accordance with the 

expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2023/24 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be prepared on a going concern basis, we 

considered the inherent risks associated with the continuation of services provided by the Authority. In doing so 

we had regard to the guidance provided in Practice Note 10 Audit of financial statements and regularity of public 

sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2022) on the application of ISA (UK) 570 Going Concern to public 

sector entities. We assessed the reasonableness of the basis of preparation used by the Authority and the 

Authority’s disclosures over the going concern period.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer)’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or 

conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue as a 

going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for 

issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) with respect to 

going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Financial Report other than the financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for 

the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except 

to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 

thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 

to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we 

are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, 

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office in November 2024 on behalf of the 

Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual 

Governance Statement does not comply with the requirements of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 

Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, or is misleading or inconsistent with the information 

of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance 

Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

~
 P

age 74 ~



Commercial in confidence

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements, the other 

information published together with the financial statements in the Financial Report for the financial year for 

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if:

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 

in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under 

Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the 

audit; or; 

• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the 

course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or 

• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014, in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority and the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities [set out on page 26], the Authority is required to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has 

the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Chief Finance Officer 

(Section 151 Officer). The Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for the preparation of the 

Financial Report, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, for being 

satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Chief Finance Officer (Section 

151 Officer) determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) is responsible for 

assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant 

national body of the intention to dissolve the Authority without the transfer of its services to another public sector 

entity.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements. Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The 

extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Authority and 

determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements 

are those related to the reporting frameworks (the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023/24, the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015, the Local Government Act 2003, the Local Government Act 1972, the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989, and the Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government 

Finance Act 1992 and the Local Government Finance Act 2012).

We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the Authority’s policies and procedures 

relating to:

• the identification, evaluation and compliance with laws and regulations;

• the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

• the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and 

regulations.

We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware of any 

instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations or whether they had any knowledge of actual, suspected 

or alleged fraud.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to material misstatement, including how 

fraud might occur, by evaluating management’s incentives and opportunities for manipulation of the financial 

statements. This included the evaluation of the risk of management override of controls and management bias 

within significant accounting estimates. We determined that the principal risks were in relation to high risk 

journal entries and the valuation of significant estimates. Our audit procedures involved:

• evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect 

fraud,

• journal entry testing, with a focus on high value manual journals posted as part of the year-end 

closedown process, journals posted by senior finance officers, journal entries that altered the 

Authority’s financial performance, and journals posted by individuals identified as having privileged 

access to the Authority’s ledger system,

• challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates 

in respect of the valuation of land and building assets and council dwellings, and the net pension 

liability, and

• assessing the extent of compliance with the relevant laws and regulations as part of our procedures on 

the related financial statement item.

~
 P

age 75 ~



Commercial in confidence

These audit procedures were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements were free 

from fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not 

detecting one resulting from error and detecting irregularities that result from fraud is inherently more difficult 

than detecting those that result from error, as fraud may involve collusion, deliberate concealment, forgery or 

intentional misrepresentations. Also, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from 

events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it.

We communicated relevant laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members, 

including the presumed significant risk of fraudulent revenue and expenditure recognition. We remained alert to 

any indications of non-compliance with laws and regulations, including fraud, throughout the audit.

Our assessment of the appropriateness of the collective competence and capabilities of the engagement team 

included consideration of the engagement team’s:

• understanding of, and practical experience with audit engagements of a similar nature and complexity 

through appropriate training and participation

• knowledge of the local government sector

• understanding of the legal and regulatory requirements specific to the Authority including:

o the provisions of the applicable legislation

o guidance issued by CIPFA/LASAAC and SOLACE

o the applicable statutory provisions.

In assessing the potential risks of material misstatement, we obtained an understanding of:

• the Authority’s operations, including the nature of its income and expenditure and its services and of its 

objectives and strategies to understand the classes of transactions, account balances, expected 

financial statement disclosures and business risks that may result in risks of material misstatement.

• the Authority's control environment, including the policies and procedures implemented by the Authority 

to ensure compliance with the requirements of the financial reporting framework.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial 

Reporting Council’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 

auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – the Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception – the Authority’s arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we have not been able to 

satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.  

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matter, except on 16 January 2024 we identified a significant 

weakness in how the Council plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services. 

This was in relation to the Council’s latest financial projections showing a cumulative budget gap to 2025/26 of 

£6.883m before planned savings. We recommended that the Council take urgent action to implement savings 

plans identified to ensure that the use of reserves to balance the budget does not continue and that the Council 

does not find itself in a position where it is unable to fund its expenditure in 2025/26.

Responsibilities of the Authority

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that the 

Authority has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating 

effectively.

We undertake our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued 

by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024. This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall 

within the scope of ‘proper arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice 

requires auditors to structure their commentary on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

• Financial sustainability: how the Authority plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to 

deliver its services; 

• Governance: how the Authority ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its 

risks; and 

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Authority uses information about its costs 

and performance to improve the way it manages and delivers its services.

We document our understanding of the arrangements the Authority has in place for each of these three 

specified reporting criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and commentary in our 

Auditor’s Annual Report. In undertaking our work, we consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there 

are significant weaknesses in arrangements.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements – Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate for Oadby & Wigston Borough Council for 

the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed the work necessary in relation to consolidation 

returns, including Whole of Government Accounts (WGA), and the National Audit Office has concluded their 

work in respect of WGA for the year ended 31 March 2024. We are satisfied that this work does not have a 

material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of the Authority, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local 

Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 85 of the Statement of Responsibilities of 

Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been 

undertaken so that we might state to the Authority’s members those matters we are required to state to them in 

an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than the Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for our audit work, for 

this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Signature

Date

~
 P

age 76 ~

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


~
 P

age 77 ~



 

 

 

Audit Committee 
Wednesday, 22 
January 2025 

Matter for 
Information 

 

Report Title: Strategic Risk Register Update (Q2 2024/25) 

Report Author(s): Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer) 
 

Purpose of Report: To present the Strategic Risk Register to Committee for information. 

Report Summary: In accordance with the requirements of the Councils Risk 
Management Policy, this report presents the Strategic Risk Register 
for the Committees consideration.  The register is updated on a 
regular basis through discussions with the internal Risk Management 
Group and members of the Senior Leadership Team. 

Recommendation(s): That the content of the report and the Strategic Risk Register 
[as set out in Appendix 1] be considered and noted. 

Senior Leadership, 
Head of Service, 
Manager, Officer and 
Other Contact(s): 

Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer) 
(0116) 257 2759 
colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk  

Strategic Objectives: Our Council (SO1) 

Vision and Values: "Our Borough - The Place To Be” (Vision) 
Resourceful & Resilient (V4) 

Report Implications:- 

Legal: There are no implications arising from this report. 

Financial: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Corporate Risk 
Management: 

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures (CR1) 
Key Supplier / Partnership Failure (CR2) 
Reputation Damage (CR4) 
Effective Utilisation of Assets / Buildings (CR5) 
Regulatory Governance (CR6) 
Failure to Respond to a Significant Incident (CR7) 
Organisational / Transformational Change (CR8) 
Economy / Regeneration (CR9) 
Increased Fraud (CR10) 
Cyber Threat / Security (CR11) 

Equalities and Equalities 
Assessment (EA): 

There are no implications arising from this report. 
EA not applicable 

Human Rights: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Health and Safety: There are no implications directly arising from this report. 

Statutory Officers’ Comments:- 

~ Page 78 ~

Agenda Item 10

mailto:colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk


 

 

Head of Paid Service: The report is satisfactory. 

Chief Finance Officer: As the author, the report is satisfactory. 

Monitoring Officer: The report is satisfactory. 

Consultees:  Risk Management Group. 

 Senior Leadership Team. 

Background Papers: None.  

Appendices: 1. Strategic Risk Register (Q2 2024/25) 

 

1. Background 

1.1 In line with the Risk Management Policy which was approved by the Audit Committee at its 
meeting in January 2023, this report presents the Strategic Risk Register (Q2 2024/25) at 
Appendix 1. 

1.2 The Risk Management Group has met, reviewed and updated the risk register which has 
then been reviewed and approved by the Senior Leadership Team (SLT). 

1.2.1 This report presents a high-level summary of the risks contained within the register and 
highlights key movements in scores from the position reported in September 2024. 

2. Strategic Risk Register 

2.1 The Strategic Risk Register contains a total of 14 risks and there have been no additional 
risks added. 

2.2 The change in the mitigated score is visually represented by the arrows shown in the far-
right column “Direction of travel of mitigated score risk”. 

2.3 There are no changes to the mitigated scores. 

2.4 Changes have been made to existing controls, management actions and target dates, 
which are detailed in the Review Commentary column of the Risk Register. 

 

 

~ Page 79 ~



Level Score Description               

•         no impact on service
•         no impact on reputation
•         complaint unlikely 5 5 10 15 20 25

•         litigation risk remote 4 4 8 12 16 20

•         slight impact on service 3 3 6 9 12 15

•         slight impact on reputation 2 2 4 6 8 10

•         complaint possible 1 1 2 3 4 5

•         litigation possible
•         some service disruption
•         potential for adverse publicity - avoidable with careful handling
•         complaint probable
•         litigation probable
•         service disrupted
•         adverse publicity not avoidable (local media)
•         complaint probable
•         litigation probable
•         service interrupted for significant time
•         major adverse publicity not avoidable (national media)
•         major litigation expected
•         resignation of senior management and board
•         loss of beneficiary confidence

Level Score Description

Remote 1 •         may only occur in exceptional circumstances

Unlikely 2 •         expected to occur in a few circumstances

Possible 3 •         expected to occur in some circumstances

Probable 4 •         expected to occur in many circumstances

Highly probable 5 •         expected to occur frequently and in most circumstances

Risks that are red require mitigating action to reduce to amber or white

Major 4

IMPACT Impact

1 2 3 4 5

Insignificant 1

Li
ke

lih
o

o
d

Extreme / Catastrophic 5

LIKELIHOOD

Minor 2

Moderate 3

z:\sharedcloud\hydra\data\tmp\pool-6-thread-1-8674680635975899491.octo\5d013f43-4343-4098-8d1a-011f6618a526.xlsx

~
 P

age 80 ~

A
ppendix 1



Risk Definition 2019-2024 Root Cause: 

What is the headline 

risk/issue?

What is the root cause or problem?  

What could go wrong?

CR1 Decreasing Financial 

resources / Increasing 

Financial Pressures

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3) benefits

for fundamental service reform.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

inflation

expectations not met

local community and 

economy e.g. spiral effect

owed to the council through 

the introduction of UC,  

adding stresses to council 

finances and the local 

economy.                                      

significant.

5 4 20  Budgetary Control processes and committee reporting

scenario planning

service delivery                                                                                                                                                     

   2024/25 Budget Approved at Full Council 

February 2024. This balanced by introduction of new charges, service 

changes including staffing reductions.   The savings targets are constantly 

monitored by SLT and is a standing item on SLT agenda and opportunities for 

innovation are regularly sought such as winning an award to install solar 

panels at Wigston Pool, therefore reducing energy costs for the Council.                                                                                                 

Draft budget for 2025/26 accepted at PFD Dec 24                                                                                                                    

4 4 16

Delivery Changes – 

Financial Sustainability

Plan.                                                                                                                                                         

Regular review of savings 

targets.                                         

New PID to be developed 

including all aspects linked 

to sustainability of the 

Councils finances, eg 

establishments, contracts 

etc

reviews 2024                 

4 4 16 Chief 

Financial 

Officer

Dec-24 Updated existing controls to 

remove historic / controls no 

longer relevant. The delivery 

of Service Delivery Changes 

– Financial Sustainability

Plan, where activity is well 

under way.                        New 

PID completed.

CR2 Key Supplier Failure Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

  5 4 20

Partnership working with Local Authority Partners                                                                                                                                      

Lightbulb and Building Control.                                                                                                        

eation of Project and Procurement Team and Procurement Policy 

promotes use of established frameworks, thus reducing risk of supplier failure.

Programme                                                                                                                                                      

template.                                                                                                                                             

negotiations.                                                                                                                                               

SLM has agreed to changes.                                                                            

Formal Contract management training has been rolled out via CMPP

4 3 12 Contract review underway 

(Sustainability programme).                         

Further external review of 

our contract management 

process and support with 

improvements (CMPP)                    

Sep-24 2 2 4 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Commentary amended to 

reflect new position with SLM.

CR3 Failure to work 

effectively with other 

public sector partner 

organisations (PSOs) 

and 3rd sector 

organisations

Building, Protecting and 

Empowering 

Communities (CO1); 

Growing the Borough 

Economically (CO2)

Council has agreements with 

PSOs

foster effective relationships may be 

inadequate leading to relationship 

breakdown

Failure of relationships at strategic level 

in County & across members 

in Community Safety 

Partnership

Sports Alliance partnership

economies of scale

4 3 12 Formal agreements with public sector partners which clearly identify roles & 

responsibilities including H&WB, Lightbulb, Building Control and Local Land 

Charges.

agreements

being delivered by partner organisation is received and is of appropriate 

quality

Member Advisory Group also in place    Performance of these arrangements 

is formally reviewed and changes are made if necessary.                            

Cost of Living support programme has funded 3rd sector organisations and 

support for warm hubs.                                                                           

Contract review complete.

2 3 6  Sep-24 2 3 6 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Updated management control

Strategic Risk Register

Consequence /effect: 

What could occur as a 

result, how much of a 

problem would it be?

Existing Controls (sources of assurance)Inherent Risk Score Further management 

actions/controls 

Risk  OwnerMitigated Risk Score

(with controls)

Review CommentaryReview 

Date

(no controls)

Direction of Travel of 

mitigated risk score

Ref

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

Im
p

a
c
t

Target 

Implementation 

date for further 

mgt actions

Target Score with 

further 

management 

actions/

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

~
 P

age 81 ~



Risk Definition 2019-2024 Root Cause: 

What is the headline 

risk/issue?

What is the root cause or problem?  

What could go wrong?

Strategic Risk Register

Consequence /effect: 

What could occur as a 

result, how much of a 

problem would it be?

Existing Controls (sources of assurance)Inherent Risk Score Further management 

actions/controls 

Risk  OwnerMitigated Risk Score

(with controls)

Review CommentaryReview 

Date

(no controls)

Direction of Travel of 

mitigated risk score

Ref

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

Im
p

a
c
t

Target 

Implementation 

date for further 

mgt actions

Target Score with 

further 

management 

actions/

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

CR4 Hard to reach 

demographics feel 

disenfranchised 

through lack of 

specific 

communication and 

engagement.

Building, Protecting and 

Empowering 

Communities (CO1)

engagement

connected

in non-statutory service being stopped                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  

do so                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

living crises

community initiatives

impact on equalities agenda 

and HWB of residents

representative of 

demographic. 

the needs of this 

demographic

4 4 16

strategy/policy through Citizens Panel and other communication channels, 

compliant with the Code of Practice on Consultations

e.g. tenants newsletter in place

health and wellbeing targeting socially vulnerable                                                                                               

target vulnerable and hard to reach residents/communities.                                                                        

basis.                                                                                                                                                            

All households are to receive 2*letter communications regarding change to 

the bin collection regime.                                                                                                                

Virtual Appoiintments to increase customer contact have commenced         

Volunteer event took place in November 24.

2 2 4 Members session planned 

for January 2025

1 2 3 Head of 

Customer 

Service and 

Transformati

on

Jan-25 Updated management control

CR5 Political Dynamics Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

member/officer engagement

communication

expectations

(organisational and political)

(rather than planned)

legislative requirements e.g. 

equalities

finances

3 4 12

with training planned to familiarise members with its content

management structure

undertaken                                                                                                                                                 

Scrutiny November 2022                                                                                                                    

'meet the teams'.                                                                                                                                                          

Member Working Group established to engage with the Alternate Weekly 

Waste Collection Project 

3 3 9  New Corporate Strategy 

to be presented to 

Members      - presented 

16/7/24 at full council                                 

training  externally 

facilitated

2 3 6 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Updated management controls 

and updated further actions

CR6 Reputation Damage Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

advice

business planning and consideration of 

financial implications

affected

partnership

level

damage/rectifying the 

situation

retention

provision, inappropriate 

financial decisions made

4 4 16

module also in place for managers.                                                                                             

weekly waste collection project.                                                                                                               

Peer Review Action Plan built into new MTFS                                                                          

ing and investigation training for all managers undertaken                                            

Recruitment pages revamped on Corporate website and Corporate Strategy 

2 2 4 Oct-24 2 2 4 Chief 

Executive

Dec-24 Updated further controls

~
 P

age 82 ~



Risk Definition 2019-2024 Root Cause: 

What is the headline 

risk/issue?

What is the root cause or problem?  

What could go wrong?

Strategic Risk Register

Consequence /effect: 

What could occur as a 

result, how much of a 

problem would it be?

Existing Controls (sources of assurance)Inherent Risk Score Further management 

actions/controls 

Risk  OwnerMitigated Risk Score

(with controls)

Review CommentaryReview 

Date

(no controls)

Direction of Travel of 

mitigated risk score

Ref

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

Im
p

a
c
t

Target 

Implementation 

date for further 

mgt actions

Target Score with 

further 

management 

actions/

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

CR7 Effective utilisation of 

Assets/Buildings  

(non-housing)

Building, Protecting and 

Empowering 

Communities (CO1); 

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

opportunities

premiums

corporate team e.g. 

corporate manslaughter

4 3 12

monitoring

Health and Safety Action Plan approved by full Council April 2023.                              

disposal of assets.                                                                           

3 3 9

Management Policy and 

Capital Expenditure Plan

Management 

database/system 

purchased and timetabled 

for implementation.  Roll 

out of the system has 

begun.

sale of Bushloe House and 

Oadby Pool site.                   

Marketing all of our assets 

for hire to generate 

additional income to 

support the sustainability 

plan

2024

2 2 4 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Further Management 

controls updated.

CR8 Regulatory 

Governance

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3) Data Protection

3 4 12

associated with the Council as a social landlord. A full inspection by the 

regulator can be expected by end of 2026 - Housing Manager is preparing for 

mock-inspection during 2024.

scrutiny on Building Control and the construction industry generally and the 

Leiicestershire Building Control Partnership has put in place an action plan to 

manage this risk                                                                                                                                  

1 1 1

GDPR/DPA to be 

completed by all.    

Resources in Housing 

Team to be focused around 

meeting the requirements 

of the new act.

 Summer 2025

2024 

1 1 1 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Existing Control  and further 

actions have been updated  

  

CR9 Failure to respond to 

a significant incident 

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

as a result of cost of living

premiums

services

Insurance – higher 

premiums

services

major incident

becoming ill

4 4 16

(incl power lose scenario)                                                                                                                             

2022                                                                                                                                                                

Mighty Oak national power outage LRF Training exercise                                          

generator if power outage.                                                                                                            

BCPs being reviewed; Implications from Martyn's Law have been considered.                                                                                                                                              

2 3 6

attendance to be reviewed 

by SLT                 Protect & 

Prevent training to be rolled 

out by the end of the year.                                                          

Sept 2024

   

2 3 6 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Existing controls uand further 

management actions are 

updated

~
 P

age 83 ~



Risk Definition 2019-2024 Root Cause: 

What is the headline 

risk/issue?

What is the root cause or problem?  

What could go wrong?

Strategic Risk Register

Consequence /effect: 

What could occur as a 

result, how much of a 

problem would it be?

Existing Controls (sources of assurance)Inherent Risk Score Further management 

actions/controls 

Risk  OwnerMitigated Risk Score

(with controls)

Review CommentaryReview 

Date

(no controls)

Direction of Travel of 

mitigated risk score

Ref

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

Im
p

a
c
t

Target 

Implementation 

date for further 

mgt actions

Target Score with 

further 

management 

actions/

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

CR10 Organisational/     

Transformational 

Change 

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

services 

resources                                                                                                                 

practices

service

damage/perception 

3 3 9

other stakeholder comms plans                                                                                                       

Strategy undertaken                                                                                                                                                                    

Organisation Strategy update completed.                                                                         

review underway /                                                                                                                   

Service changes post budget approval are well underway . Project 

Management approach has been refined; Joint SLT/CMT Meetings are being 

programmed into diaries focusing on finance and performance/ Sustainability 

Plan is a standing itrem on SLT agenda

3 2 6

be approved.             

undertaken.                      

Sustainability Plan Review 

/ongoing                 

Management plan 

developed and 

implemented for Waste 

Transformation. 

Opportunities being 

considered for joint working 

with other local authorities. 

January 2025                2 2 4 Strategic 

Director

Jan-25 Existing controls updated for 

progress against 

budget/service implications and 

revised PPM approach and 

senior managemet meetings.   

Waste trnsformationn project 

has been delivered within 

timesacle.  Agreement reached 

for Blaby DC to pay for 

additional days of  IT support. 

CR11 Economy/

Regeneration

Growing the Borough 

Economically (CO2) BREXIT COVID Ukraine/Russia conflict 

and also energy costs crisis (uncertainty 

of cost impact) 

Economic Regeneration Manager and 

Economic Development posts removed 

from establishment to enable savings to 

Council budget

Domestic)

investment

certain services e.g. 

benefits

assets

adapt/change

decreased funding – 

increased demand

making – uncertainty

leads to greater risk

levels

5 4 20

decline in economy

support to businesses

and ready to submit if an opportunity arises. Currently supporting University in 

investigating a Heritage Lottery Fund bid                                                                            

projects (Oadby Pool and Horsewell Lane)                                                                                                          

rates relief which may provide additional relief to businesses.                                 

progressed during 2024                                                                                                                      

Horsewell Lane Business Case agreed by Members - approach made to 

Homes England for potential funding.

4 4 16 Monitor progress against 

ER Strategy & UKSPF 

Programme.                            

Project review meetings 

undertaken with all UKSPF 

funded projects to ensure 

outcomes and expenditure 

will be achieved.  

Proposals being developed 

for any underspends

Ongoing 3 3 9 Head of Built 

Environment

Dec-24 Economic Regeneration 

Manager and Economic 

Development Officer posts 

removed from establishment to 

enable savings to Council 

budget.   Awaiting further 

information on what, if anything, 

will replace UKSPF after March 

2025 as this is likely to 

determine the Council's 

economic development offer 

beyond that date.                  

Further management controls 

update for latest project 

meetings.  Infomation received 

from Govt that UKSPF would 

be continued for 2025/26

  

CR12 Increased Fraud Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3) staff and social deprivation

authority to investigate 

fraud issues

3 3 9

to be implemented.                                                                                                                                   

2 3 6

acttivities to Audit 

Committee                       

2 2 4 Chief 

Financial 

Officer

Dec-24 Updated to include Audit 

Committee Report July 2024

~
 P

age 84 ~



Risk Definition 2019-2024 Root Cause: 

What is the headline 

risk/issue?

What is the root cause or problem?  

What could go wrong?

Strategic Risk Register

Consequence /effect: 

What could occur as a 

result, how much of a 

problem would it be?

Existing Controls (sources of assurance)Inherent Risk Score Further management 

actions/controls 

Risk  OwnerMitigated Risk Score

(with controls)

Review CommentaryReview 

Date

(no controls)

Direction of Travel of 

mitigated risk score

Ref

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

Im
p

a
c
t

Target 

Implementation 

date for further 

mgt actions

Target Score with 

further 

management 

actions/

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

O
v
e
ra

ll
 r

is
k
 

ra
ti

n
g

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d

Im
p

a
c
t

CR13 Cyber Threat/Security, 

Cyber security is seen 

as an ICT risk and not 

a corporate risk that 

needs to be managed 

and monitored by 

senior management.

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

Cyber threats are increasing on a 

worldwide basis, with criminals known to 

target public sector organisations in an 

attempt to obtain personal data on a 

significant scale.  The Council is thus at 

high risk of being attacked.

authority to investigate 

fraud issues

breaches of GDPR, SMT 

lack of oversight

4 5 20

considered with any support ticket, change request or new digital 

implementation and must be approved through change . 

oThe IT Team is reviewing its security policies to ensure they are in line with 

the latest cyber security guidance and ensuring the organisation operates in a 

safe yet effective way. This includes managing the IT infrastructure, but also 

with how staff function, use equipment and undertake regular security training 

within their respective roles.

oThe Council has now implemented a duplicate firewall, for added security 

and resilience to the Councils network. This further protects us, but also gives 

us dual connectivity so we are not restricted by a single point of failure in a 

key security component. 

oThe Council has a BCP but this will continuously be checked and updated to 

ensure we are as prepared as possible for emergency situations (if it were to 

arise).

oMember briefing completed to advise of current security features and their 

responsibility as stakeholders to the authority. 

oAll Staff have undertaken their yearly security training (Q1 2024).

oPSN compliance has been achieved and certification received in Q1 of 2024. 

The Council is currently submitting information for its ‘Cyber essentials’ 

certification as well – both giving assurance the organisation is as secure as 

reasonably possible.

2 3 6 oWe are looking to use the 

cyber security attack on 

Leicester City Council as a 

‘lessons learnt’ process to 

ensure we improve and 

stay ahead of the threats. 

This is looking to be 

initiated via the Resilience 

partnership                                    

Member training delivered 

in September 24  with a 

mop up session planned for 

January 2025.            Roll 

out of Multi Factor 

Authentication   across the 

Council                 

October 2024

   

2 3 6 Head of 

Customer 

Service and 

Transformati

on

Dec-24 As part of cyber security review 

and changes in IT Team 

structure, all existing controls 

have been updated.

CR14 19. Staff lone working 

including out of hours

Providing Excellent 

Services (CO3)

Increased risk of staff harm from 

violence & aggression from service 

users.

Staff could suffer physical 

and emotional harm, which 

could lead to long periods 

of sick leave.

4 5 20

to visits taking place

potential for aggression & violence                                                                                               

working and guidance provided.                                                                Head 

of SC&T and H&S officer reviewed the Customer Alert System including the 

monitoring of lone working procedures.

2 3 6  Review response to 

alarms going off in the 

buildings during the night.

Sep-24 2 3 6 Head of Law 

and 

Democracy/

Monitoring 

Officer

Dec-24 Further management controls 

updated

~
 P

age 85 ~


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	7 Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025)
	Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2025)

	8 Appointment of Internal Auditors
	9 External Audit Progress Report (January 2025)
	Slide 1: The Audit Findings Report for Oadby & Wigston Borough Council
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Section   Page Headlines 4 Financial statements 7 Value for Money arrangements 22 Independence and ethics 24 Appendices Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance 27 Action plan – Audit of financial statements 28 Follow up of
	Slide 4: 1. Headlines
	Slide 5: 1. Headlines
	Slide 6: 1. Headlines
	Slide 7: 2. Financial statements 
	Slide 8: 2. Financial statements
	Slide 9: 2. Financial statements – Significant risks
	Slide 10: 2. Financial statements – Significant risks
	Slide 11: 2. Financial statements – Significant risks
	Slide 12: 2. Financial statements – Significant risks
	Slide 13: 2. Financial statements – Significant risks
	Slide 14: 2. Financial statements – Key judgements and estimates
	Slide 15: 2. Financial statements – Key judgements and estimates
	Slide 16: 2. Financial statements – Key judgements and estimates
	Slide 17: 2. Financial statements – Information Technology
	Slide 18: 2. Financial statements – Other communication requirements
	Slide 19: 2. Financial statements – Other communication requirements
	Slide 20: 2. Financial statements – Other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 21: 2. Financial statements – Other responsibilities under the Code
	Slide 22: 3. Value for Money arrangements (VFM) 
	Slide 23: 3. VFM – Our procedures and conclusions
	Slide 24: 4. Independence and ethics
	Slide 25: 4. Independence and ethics
	Slide 26: Appendices
	Slide 27: A. Communication of audit matters to those charged with governance
	Slide 28: B. Action plan – Audit of financial statements
	Slide 29: B. Action plan – Audit of financial statements
	Slide 30: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 31: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 32: C. Follow up of prior year recommendations
	Slide 33: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 34: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 35: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 36: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 37: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 38: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 39: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 40: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 41: D. Audit adjustments
	Slide 42: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 43: E. Fees and non-audit services
	Slide 44: F. Management Letter of Representation
	Slide 45: F. Management Letter of Representation
	Slide 46: G. Audit opinion 
	Slide 47: G. Audit opinion 
	Slide 48: G. Audit opinion 
	Slide 49

	10 Strategic Risk Register Update (Q2 2024/25)
	Appendix 1 - Strategic Risk Register Update (Q2 2024/25)


